




 

 

 
11/7/12 
 
Agree Realty Corporation                                                                Job Name: 317 S. State St. 
Attn: Mr. Laith Hermiz, Exc. V.P.                                                    Job Location: Ann Arbor, MI 
31850 Northwestern Hwy. 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 
 
Re: Site Review of Historic Steel Windows 
 
The following is the requested information from our site review of the historic steel 
windows on the second floor of the building at 317 S. State St. The existing windows 
appear to be original to the structure; hot rolled 1 ¾” steel with an outside putty 
glazing pocket.  The typical horizontal mullion is 3”, and the typical vertical mullion 
is 2 ½”, these sitelines apply to both fixed and hopper portions of the typical window 
assembly. All the glass is ¼” clear annealed with an outside putty glazing. The 
common exterior cap mullion is 3 ½” with an approximate overall site line of 5-0” to 
5 ½”.  There is a total of (15) Openings and (23) Sections. 
 
Existing Condition: In looking at the potential for restoration we look for rust and 
material break down of the frame components. Likewise, steel windows have no 
thermal break systems like current aluminum products, nor the ability to upgrade to 
an insulated glass unit since putty glazing is required for this product configuration. 
In close inspection we see evidence of heavy rust and degradation, much of it has 
been caulked over and painted; this is not considered an acceptable repair method. 
All the exterior putty glazing is failing and requires replacement. Only two of the 
operating sashes are usable, the others are bent, have broken or missing operating 
hardware. To restore the sashes correctly all units must be removed and shop 
repaired. This is necessary in addressing the rusting of the frames on both exposed 
and buried surface. One key element that puts restoration in doubt is the sill 
condition; many of the frames at the horizontal sill are degraded and would require 
replacement. This is a problem with this particular exterior glazed steel window 
since sourcing that component ends without a supplier. The more common 1 ¾” 
interior glazed steel product (such as the project we restored at First and William in 
downtown Ann Arbor) is still being manufactured and we can obtain components. 
I would say the overall condition is “poor” at best; the only exception to this would be 
the corner window that has no operating sections. 
 
Recommendation: In our full review of this project I would recommend the 
replacement of the original steel windows with an aluminum thermally broken 
historic replica product. We have done many projects that have received both SHPO 
and NPS approval for this replacement.  The existing steel window style and 



configuration is not available in a hot rolled product from any of the sources we have 
investigated or done business with over the past 30 years. Trying to restore the 
windows and provide a product that will have durability and longevity would not be 
foreseeable in our estimation. Suggested products can be researched and details and 
pricing can be provided. 
 
 
Let me know if I can be of any other assistance. 
Sincerely, 
                                                                                 
 
 
________MKS_________________________________                                                               11/7/12_________________ 
Michael K. Shields                                                                                       Date 
President 
BlackBerry Systems, Inc. 
 
 












